
 
 

HOUSING SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 14 November 2016 6.00 pm Committee Room 1, City Hall 

 
Membership: 
 

 
Councillors Gary Hewson (Chair), Pat Vaughan (Vice-Chair), 
Bob Bushell, Jackie Kirk, Jane Loffhagen and Keith Weaver 
 

Substitute member(s): 
 

Councillors Biff Bean 
 

Lincoln Tenants Panel 
member(s): 
 

Gaynor Brown, Eric Jenkinson, Caroline Coyle-Fox and Brian 
Botham 
 

Officers attending: 
 

Democratic Services, Bob Ledger, Karen Talbot and Chris Morton 
 

A G E N D A 

SECTION A Page(s)  

1.  Confirmation of Minutes - 3 October 2016  
 

3 - 6 

2.  Declarations of Interest  
 
Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct, 
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary. 
 

 

3.  LTP Matters  
 

Verbal 
Report 

4.  Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 2 2016/17  
 

7 - 14 

5.  Lincoln Tenants' Panel (LTP) Update Report  
 

15 - 16 

6.  Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Strategy 2014-17, Update 
Report  
 

17 - 34 

7.  'Home! Magazine Editions 2017-Article Planning  
 

Verbal 
Report 

8.  Work Programme 2016/17  
 

35 - 38 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally blank.



Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee 3 October 2016 

 
Present: Councillors Councillor Pat Vaughan (in the Chair),  

Bob Bushell, Paul Gowen (substituted for Gary Hewson), 
Jackie Kirk and Jane Loffhagen 
 

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Gary Hewson and Councillor Keith Weaver 
 

Also in Attendance: Gaynor Brown, Eric Jenkinson, Caroline Coyle-Fox and 
Brian Botham 
 

 
16.  Confirmation of Minutes - 8 August 2016  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 8 August 2016 be confirmed. 
 

17.  Declarations of Interest  
 

No declarations of interest were received. 
 

18.  LTP Matters (Verbal Report) 
 

Eric Jenkinson, Chair of LTP advised on the following matters: 
 

 Membership of LTP had increased but they had since lost 2 members 

 The Housing Roadshow had been successful  

 There had been a good turnout at the family fun day which was held at the 
Drill Hall 

 8 LTP representatives had attended the ARCH conference on 22 
September 2016 

 The next LTP meeting would be held on 12 October 2016 

 LTP members would be attending a report writing course at City Hall 

 Representatives had attended the East Midlands Tenant Participation 
Forum  

 
RESOLVED that the update be noted with thanks. 
 

19.  Housing Revenue Account Final Outturn 2015/16  
 

Bob Ledger, Director of Housing and Regeneration 
 

a. presented the 2015/16 outturn on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 

b. advised that the revised budget for 2015/16 amounted to £29,016,000 for 
2015/16 the HRA net revenue outturn was set as a deficit of £112,900 
resulting in an estimated level of general balances at the yearend of 
£1,004265 
 

c. referred paragraph 4.1 of the report and summarised the key variances 
 

d. advised on the additional contributions to earmarked reserves as detailed 
at paragraph 4.3 of the report 
 

3

Item No. 1



e. advised on the surplus of £357,639 would result in HRA balancing 
increasing to £1,244,739 which was above the £1m prudent minimum 
assessed in MTFS 
 

f. further advised that it was approved by Executive that a new HRA 
earmarked reserve be created to support the delivery of strategic projects 
within the HRA and  £240,000 was contributed into the reserve 
 

g. advised that after accounting for transfers to earmarked reserves the 
increase in HRA balances as at 31 March 2016, in line with the MTFS and 
the HRA business plan. 
 

 
Members referred to Appendix B and asked for clarification on the £500,000 
Repairs Account. 
 
Bob Ledger, Director of Housing and Community Services  explained that this 
was a balancing fund which meant that the Council kept a number of resources 
for a safety net. The balance had been reduced from £750,000 to £250,000 in 
line with a review of HRA balances. 
 
Members further asked if there was a major storm or flood would this fund be 
used. 
 
Bob Ledger confirmed that this fund would be the first port of call. 
 
RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted. 
 

20.  Housing Revenue Account Quarter 1 - 2016/17  
 

Bob Ledger, Director of Housing and Regeneration  
 

a. presented the first quarter (Qtr 1 2016/17) outturn on the Housing 
Revenue Account 
 

b. referred to paragraph 3.1 of the report and advised that the net revenue 
budget was set as a surplus of £82,380 which would result in an estimated 
level of general balances at the year-end of £1,087,130 
 

c. advised that the HRA was currently projecting an overspend of £59,746 
which would lead to General Balance of £1,027,380 at the end of 2016/17 
 

d. summarised the key variances: 
 

 Dwelling Rent – additional income £(76,000) 

 Charges for services and facilities – reduced income £116,000 

 Investment interest – additional income £(26,100) 

 Supervision & Management – additional spending £50,000 
 

e. referred to paragraph 4.3 of the report and advised that the level of 
forecast HRA balances would be monitored closely during the year and no 
specific actions were recommended at this time 
 

f. advised that the current forecast assumed that corrective action currently 
being undertaken would bring performance back in line with levels 

4



assumed in the budget.  
 
The committee asked the following questions, made the following 
comments and received relevant responses: 
 
Question: Referred to additional spending and asked what this included. 
Response: The additional spending included the Lincare business plan 
allowance which was £50,000. 
Question: Asked if there were many people signing up for Lincare. 
Response: There were over 5000 people using Lincare, the aim was to 
make the scheme viable to keep the service.  
 
RESOLVED that the Quarter 1 performance of the Housing Revenue 
Account be noted. 

 
21.  Housing Investment Programme 2015-16  

 
Bob Ledger, Director of Housing and Community Services 
 

a. presented a report to provide an update on the Housing Investment 
Programme for the 2015/16. 
 

b. gave an overview of the background to the report as detailed at paragraph 
2  and advised that a major review of the Housing Business Plan during 
the financial year resulted in an increase to the budgeted planned 
expenditure for 2015/16 to £15,725,913.  
 

c. advised that the final spend on the programme as at 31 March 2016 was 
£15,426,544 which equated to 98.10% of the approved programme. 
 

d. advised  that the contingency reserve for 2015/16 was a £306,298 and this 
was to cover any required works that were outside of the main Decent 
Homes programme but still relate to Housing Investment  

 
e. referred to the table at paragraph 5 of the report and summarised the 

elemental performance as at 31 March 2016 compared to the estimated 
programme for the 2015/16 financial year. 

 
f. gave an overview of the property improvement and refusals for 2015/16 as 

detailed at paragraph 6.1 of the report 
 
The Committee asked the following questions, made the following comments and 
received the relevant responses. 
 
Question: Referred to paragraph 5.2 and asked for more information on the New 
Build. 
Response: Clarified that the new build projects were technically completed at the 
start of this financial year, but they were practically completed at the end of the 
last financial year. 
Question: Referred to paragraph 6.1 and asked why 109 tenants had refused 
proposed improvement works. 
Response: The information was collected on individual cases, sometimes elderly 
tenants refused work because they did not want the upheaval. The work would be 
completed when the property was re-let. 
Question: When would Jarvis House be refurbished? 

5



Response: Not at the moment, currently work was being undertaken at the other 
2 tower blocks to look at what refurbishment work was needed. 
Question: Asked for information on adaptations to Council properties. 
Response: The City Council paid for adaptations to Council properties and the 
County Council paid for adaptations to private housing. It was set out in the HRA 
and more information could be circulated after the meeting. 
Question:  Asked for information on the removal of asbestos from properties. 
Response: Advised that asbestos was only removed if there was damage to it. 
40% of properties had been surveyed for asbestos last year. 
Question: Residents were being approached by utility companies to have their 
meters changed to smart meters. Should the companies be asking permission 
from the Council instead of tenants? 
Response: The utility companies should be contacting the council, suggested 
that an article be included in the next tenants newsletter advising tenants to refer 
utility companies to the Council. 
 
RESOLVED that the final outturn of the capital programme in 2015/16 be noted. 
 
 

22.  Work Programme 2016 -2017  
 

The Democratic Services Officer 
 

a. presented the work programme for the Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee 
for 2016/17 as detailed at appendix A of the report. 
 

b. advised that this was an opportunity for the committee to suggest other 
items be included within the work programme. 
 

Bob Ledger, Director of Housing and Regeneration asked for clarification on the 
unscheduled item relating to Secure Tenancies. 
 
The Democratic Services Officer confirmed that this would be clarified with the 
Chair before the next meeting.  
 
Bob Ledger, further asked that committee be specific in their requests when 
adding an item to the work programme. 

 
RESOLVED that the work programme be agreed. 
 

6



HOUSING SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE  14 NOVEMBER 2016  
 

 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT QUARTER 2 – 2016/17  
 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

HOUSING AND REGENERATION 
 

REPORT BY: 
 

PAULA BURTON, HOUSING QUALITY & PERFORMANCE TEAM 
LEADER 
 

 

 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 To provide Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee with an end of quarter report on 
Performance Indicators for the second quarter of year 2016/17 (July 2016 – 
September 2016). See Appendix A. 
 

2. Executive Summary 
  

2.1 This report combines all performance relevant to Housing Landlord issues. 
 

2.2 In total there are 23 measures and of these, 16 are on or exceeding targets for the 
year and 7 have not met the targets set.  
  

3. Background 
 

3.1 Over the last six years the Council has been working with the Lincoln Tenants’ 
Panel to improve external scrutiny and to meet the standards implemented by the 
Homes and Communities Agency. 
 

3.2 From 1 April 2010 all social landlords were required to have local offers in place 
alongside the national standards as set out in the new Regulatory Framework for 
Social Housing. The Framework was amended with effect from April 2012 but the 
principles remain the same. 
 

4. Main Body of Report 
 

4.1 Appendix A attempts to simplify the overall analysis by listing performance on a 
service functional basis (rents, repairs etc) and then showing the source of the 
indicator (reason). 
 

4.2 For comparison purposes each indicator shows performance for the last year, 
target for current year (where applicable) and progress made in the current year. 
 

4.3 
 
 
 

Appendix A shows which targets have been met and those where we have not 
achieved our target. There are 16 indicators that are currently meeting or 
exceeding target at the end of the first quarter. Particular areas to highlight are: 
 

7

Item No. 4



4.4 
 
 

Average Re-Let Period – All Dwellings (Including Major Works) 
 
This indicator has made a marked improvement with the amount of time a dwelling 
was void reducing by over five days since last quarter. This has resulted in a 
reduction of the year to date performance of 24 days (which is exceeding the full 
year target). 
 

4.5 Percentage of Rent Lost Due to Vacant Dwellings 
 
The reduction in the average re-let period ties in with this indicator and it has 
resulted in the percentage of rent loss reducing from 0.94% last quarter to 0.69% 
this quarter which is the equivalent to £18,000 less loss.  This has reduced the 
year to date figure to 0.81% which is within the target of 0.90%. 
 

4.6 Emergency Repairs  
 
All emergency repairs that have been requested during the first and second 
quarters were completed within the 24 hour timescale.   
 

4.7 All Reactive Repairs 
 
This indicator measures our performance in completing repairs on time for 
emergency (1 day), urgent (3 days) and non-urgent (20 days) responsive repairs. 
At the end of quarter two performance remained at 97% for completion within 
target time, against the target of 95%. With the re-introduction of a specific 
emergency repair team and the Housing Repairs Service re-structure, 
performance has continued to improve from October last year. 
 

4.8 Average Time Taken to Complete Repairs 
 
The number of days taken to complete a repair continues to decrease and 
currently stands at 5 days and is less than half of the time taken at the end of the 
year 2015/16.  
 

4.9 The following summary provides a brief explanation of reasons where we have not 
achieved our targets. Particular areas to highlight are: 
 
Arrears as a Percentage of Rent Debit 
 

Arrears have increased over the first two quarters after showing a general trend of 
reduction over the preceding year, when a lot of officer time was dedicated to the 
issue. Officer actions and visits are therefore now being increased with the aim of 
halting the current upward trend.  
 

8



4.10 Percentage of Offers Accepted First Time 
 

Performance remains below target for this quarter.  The main refusal reasons 
include size of property, dislike of area, changed personal circumstances and 
property unsuitable for needs of applicant. The officers from the Voids Team who 
attend viewings have been asked to provide as much detailed information as 
possible on refusal reasons.  They are also now contacting the Property Shop 
whilst they are with the applicant so that they can check their situation and their 
likelihood of being offered a different property in the near future.  This will enable 
applicants to make a more informed decision and may result in some applicants 
accepting the properties. 
 

4.11 Percentage of ASB Cases Closed that were Resolved  
 
This is a difficult area to predict and the target set is the same as the previous 
year. In reality each case has to be treated on its own merits so performance is 
expected to fluctuate. During the first quarter the percentage of cases resolved 
was 78.57% and this quarter it was 86.78%, so this shows improvement. Regular 
monitoring of all cases continues to take place and cases are closed by officers in 
agreement with their managers. 

5. Strategic Priorities 
  

5.1 
 
 
 

Improve the Performance of the Council’s Housing Landlord Function 
 

There continues to be a strong commitment to improving the quality and efficiency 
of the service and this is a key aim in the 2016/17 financial year. 
 

6. Organisational Impacts  
 

6.1 Finance  
 
The performance reported in this report are all, currently, being delivered within 
the existing budget.  
 

7. Recommendation  
 

7.1 Members are asked to note and comment on: 
 

 a) The current performance outcomes during the financial year 2016/17 ; 
 

 b)     A commitment to continue reporting on a quarterly basis and to determine a 
programme to have more interim in depth reviews of service specific 
performance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



Key Decision 
 

No 

Key Decision Reference 
No. 
 

 

Do the Exempt 
Information Categories 
Apply 
 

No 

Call in and Urgency: Is the 
decision one to which Rule 
15 of the Scrutiny Procedure 
Rules apply? 
 

No 

Does the report contain 
Appendices? 
 

Yes – One 

List of Background 
Papers: 

 

Lead Officer: Paula Burton, Housing Quality and Performance Team 
Leader 
Telephone 873572 

 
 

10



 

LANDLORD SERVICES – PERFORMANCE 2016/17         APPENDIX A 

 
 

Figures in brackets are the standalone quarterly figure.  

 
Reference 

 
Description Actual 

2015/16 
Target 
2016/17 

2016/17 
Q1 

2016/17 
Q2 

2016/17 
Q3 

2016/17 
 Q4 

Commentary 

 
Rents 

125B % of rent collected as a 
percentage of rent due 

101.33% 100% 98.61% 98.97% 
(99.33%) 

  Below target. 

126 Arrears as a % of rent debit 2.32% 2.25% 
 

2.70% 2.96%   Below target.  Arrears cash figure at 
the end of quarter 2 stood at 
£836,890.86. 

 
Voids 

69 % of rent lost due to vacant 
dwellings 

0.85% 0.90% 0.94% 0.81% 
(0.69%) 

  Better than target. 

58 Average re-let period – General 
needs (excluding major works) 

19.39 days 20 days 23.3 days 20.3 days 
(17.1 days) 

  Above target for the year by 0.3 
days, however for Quarter 2 alone 
we are 3 days under the 20 day 
target. 

61 Average re-let period – All 
dwellings (including major works) 

24.36 days 25 days 26.6 days 24.2 days 
(21.4 days) 

  Better than target. 

 
Allocations 

85A % of offers accepted first time 85.97% 85% 
 

83.23% 81.29% 
(78.74%) 

  Below target. 

 
Repairs 

29 % of all emergency repairs carried 
out within time limits 

99.74% 99.5% 100% 100% 
(100%) 

  Better than target. 

32 % of all repairs carried out within 
time limits 

90.51% 95% 97.02% 97.10% 
(97.18%) 

  Better than target. 

33 Average time taken to complete 
repairs 

11 days 15 days 6 days 5 days 
(4.2 days) 

  Better than target. 

34 Complete repairs right on first visit. 80.14% 85% 
 

80.72% 82.20% 
(83.60%) 

  Below target. 

37 Repair appointments kept against 
appointments made (%) 

96.25% 95% 92.24% 94.14% 
(95.61%) 

  Below target. The cumulative 
performance remains slightly below 
target, however the Quarter 2 figures 

11



Reference 
 

Description Actual 
2015/16 

Target 
2016/17 

2016/17 
Q1 

2016/17 
Q2 

2016/17 
Q3 

2016/17 
 Q4 

Commentary 

are better than target. 

41 Tenant satisfaction with repairs 96.31% 95% 93.01% 
 

95.47% 
(97.34%) 

  Better than target. 

  
Decent Homes 

50 % of non-decent homes 1.12% 0% 0.40% 0.36%   On target. 

48 % of homes with valid gas safety 
certificate 

99.99% 100% 100% 100% 
(100%) 

  On target. 

 
Complaints 

         

22 % of complaints replied to in 10 
working days 

98.19% 95% 100% 95.12% 
(90.70%) 

  Better than target. 

22A Councillor enquiries replied to 
within time 

100% 95% 100% 100% 
(100%) 

  Better than target. 

22B MP enquiries replied to within time 93.88% 100% 
 

100% 100% 
(100%) 

  On target. 

 
ASB 

89 % of ASB cases closed that were 
resolved 

85.81% 94% 78.57% 82.43% 
(86.78%) 

  Below target. Performance has 
improved during Quarter 2. 

90 Average days to resolve ASB 
cases 

78 days 75 days 59.7 days 55.8 days 
(51.9 days) 

  Better than target. 

 
Other 

         

 Expenditure against target set for 
year – responsive maintenance 

102% 100% 23% 37%   On target. The figure for Q2 is 
provisional as there is a small 
amount of billing and capitalisation 
outstanding. 

 Expenditure against target set for 
year – capital programme 

98.95% 100% 4.72% 24.14%   On target. 

 
Customer 
Contact 

         

 % of calls answered within 60 
seconds 

67% 80% 81% 80% 
(79%) 

  On target. 

 Customer satisfaction with the 
overall service 

88% 88% by 
2014 

88% 88%   On target 
This is a biannual survey which was 
carried out in 2014. We are currently 
undertaking the survey for 2016/17. 

12



 

13



T
his page is intentionally blank.



HOUSING SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE                                         14 NOVEMBER 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
LINCOLN TENANTS’ PANEL (LTP) UPDATE REPORT 
 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

HOUSING AND REGENERATION 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

ERIC JENKINSON-LTP CHAIRPERSON 

 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this half-yearly report is to update members on the activities and 
achievements of Lincoln Tenants’ Panel (LTP) from April to October 2016. 
 

2. Main activities  
 

2.1 
 

At LTP’s AGM in March, it was agreed that the panel should focus on three key 
areas over the coming year. These were, helping to improve the council’s 
response towards anti-social behaviour (ASB), reviewing void turnaround times 
and missed appointments for repairs. The LTP members are all working hard to 
achieve these targets and I am confident that they will all be met. 
 

2.2 
 
 
 
 

The panel members have also undertaken other activities. These include: 
 

 Writing the annual report to tenants 2015/16 

 Attending East Midlands Tenant Participation Forum seminars and the 
Association of Retained Council Housing annual conference 

 Taking part in a number of training sessions aimed at building the skills and 
capabilities of the panel 

 Commenting on all HRA related Executive Committee reports 

 Monitoring performance and the HRA service delivery plan 

 Helping to promote the panel by attending the roadshow, fun day and other 
community events.  

 
2.3 Going forward, as chair of LTP, I would like to see more panel members attending 

training and conferences. I believe they would find these interesting, useful and 
beneficial. 
 

3. Recommendation  
 

3.1 
 

Members are asked to note the contents of this report and the commitment Lincoln 
Tenants’ Panel has shown over the last six months. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15

Item No. 5



Do the exempt information 
categories apply? 
 

                                        No 
 

Does Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules (call-in and 
urgency) apply? 
 

                                        No 

How many appendices does 
the report contain? 
 
 

   None 

List of Background Papers: 
 

   None 
 
 

Lead Officer: Eric Jenkinson, LTP Chairperson 
Telephone (01522) 873398 

 
 
 
 

16



HOUSING SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE                                        14 NOVEMBER 2016 
 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
TENANT INVOLVEMENT AND EMPOWERMENT STRATEGY 
2014-2017, UPDATE REPORT 
 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

HOUSING AND REGENERATION 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

CHRIS MORTON-RESIDENT INVOLVEMENT MANAGER 

 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 

1.1 To provide an update to Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee on the delivery of the 
Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Strategy 2014-2017.  
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 
 

The Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Strategy 2014-2017 came into place 
on the 1 April 2014. The strategy takes account of the national standards for 
tenant involvement and empowerment set out in the Regulatory Framework for 
Social Landlords in England 2012.  
 

2.2 
 
 

Page ten of the strategy contains a three-year action plan that sets out how we will 
deliver the strategy and the outcomes that we expect to achieve. Please see 
Appendix A for a copy of the action plan. 
 

3. Current Progress  
 

3.1 
 

There are a total of 31 actions within the action plan. Current progress can be 
broken down into: 
 

 21 actions in progress 

 10 actions completed. 
 
This gives a current completion rate of 32 per cent. Although this may appear low, 
the actions are all in progress and on track to complete by the end of 2017. 
Appendix A contains a further breakdown of the actions. 
 

4. Key Points   
 

4.1 
 

Between May and November 2016, the Resident Involvement Team and Tenant 
Representatives have focused on several key areas. These include: 
 

 Delivering the housing roadshow on 8, 9, 10 August and the housing fun 
day on 30 August 2016. These events proved a success and attracted 
around 500 residents in total. Many of those who attended were younger 
and hadn’t been involved with the council previously. This helped us 
engage with residents that we wouldn’t do so through traditional 
involvement methods. It demonstrates the value of holding these types of 

17

Item No. 6



community events. In terms of recruiting residents directly from the events, 
a total of five tenants have joined groups or expressed an interest in doing 
so. This includes, two mystery shoppers, one editorial panel member and 
two people interested in forming a residents’ group at Trent View. 
 

  Developing the mystery shopper programme. The group was set up in April 
2016; as of 31 October 2016, the mystery shoppers had made a total of 29 
calls and 53 visits. These results provided a number of suggestions on how 
to improve the customer experience of the Contact Centre. For example the 
feedback showed that the Property Shop counter was busy on a 
Wednesday morning and to address this issue, an extra member of staff is 
now available to help out during this period. 

  Commencing two further tenant-led reviews of council services. These are 
focusing on reviewing void re-let times and missed repair appointments. 
The groups aim to report their findings and recommendations in April 2017 

 

 Contributing to the Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) review and setting up an 
LTP ASB group. Three LTP members, along with officers from Tenancy 
Services, Community Safety and Legal Services, formed the ASB Service 
Development Group. The group has conducted a review of how the council 
deals with reports of ASB. The group revised procedures, information 
leaflets and webpages on the council’s website, ready to submit the service 
to HouseMark for accreditation. To ensure the service provided continues to 
improve, LTP has set up a sub group. It will scrutinise ASB performance 
and help to ensure that any recommendations made by the HouseMark 
accreditation are put into place 

  Continuing to engage with leaseholders. The Leaseholder forum has been 
running for just over a year and its members have discussed several topics, 
including customer services and maintenance charges. They have also 
taken part in reviewing the leaseholder guide, which is due for publication 
early next year 

 

 Assisting in promoting the community investment scheme and advising 
residents’ groups on how to apply. Schemes approved included a kitchen 
refurbishment at the Abbey Access Centre, flower bed restoration at Derek 
Miller Court, supplying materials for the weir at Boultham Park and 
refurbishments at St Barnabas Hospice. It is hoped to continue to grow the 
scheme over the next year and increase resident participation in assessing 
applications 
 

 Increasing engagement through Facebook. The number of likes on the 
housing page have grown to 110 and Facebook’s analytics suite show that 
posts are reaching a large number of people. For example the post about 
the Housing Repairs Service receiving an award from St Barnabas Hospice 
reached 788 people. Whilst it is not possible to qualify how many council 
tenants this included, it does demonstrate that the housing department has 
an active presence on social media. Over the next year we will further grow 
this presence and utilise it to carry out online engagement tenants this 
included, it does demonstrate that the housing department has an active 

18



presence on social media. Over the next year we will further grow this 
presence and utilise it to carry out online engagement 
 

  Facilitating the autumn round of sheltered housing forums. These were held 
throughout October and visited all 10 schemes and allowed residents to 
raise issues. The forums were also a chance for us to communicate useful 
information to residents. At this round, details were provided about the 
Welfare Advice Team and the importance of asking council operatives and 
contractors for ID. The next round of forums will be held in the spring. 

  

5. Recommendation  
 

5.1 Members are asked to: 
 

a) Note the progress made on delivering the tenant involvement and 
empowerment strategy 2014-2017 
 

b) Suggest any areas of involvement to focus on over the next year.  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Is this a key decision? 
 

 
 

No 
 

Do the exempt information 
categories apply? 
 

 
No 

 
Does Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules (call-in and 
urgency) apply? 
 

 
 

No 

How many appendices does 
the report contain? 
 
 

 
One 

List of Background Papers: 
 

None 
 
 

Lead Officer: Chris Morton, Resident Involvement Manager, 
telephone (01522) 873398 

 

19



This page is intentionally blank.



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Appendix A-Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Strategy 2014-2017 three-year action plan 
 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

Influence in 
shaping 
housing 
services 
 

1)To review the membership of Lincoln 
Tenants Panel to ensure that tenants on the 
panel are elected and accountable to tenants 
living in the area they represent to include: 
 

 Work towards ensuring the wider body 
of tenants can have a say in who their 
representative is on the Lincoln Tenants 
Panel 

 Revising Lincoln Tenants Panel 
constitution as and when required 

 Publicising meetings and their annual 
work programme 

 Improving tenants influence in decision 
making 

 Ensuring that tenant scrutiny reviews 
and outcomes of these are used to 
improve service delivery 

 Publicise outcomes of tenant scrutiny 
reviews 

 Promote vacant seats 

All tenants on the 
Lincoln Tenants 
Panel are elected 
by 2017 

March 
2017 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

LTP members 
must stand for 
election every 
four years as part 
of rolling 
programme of 
elections.  
 
Procedures in 
place to make 
sure all LTP 
members are 
elected by 
tenants on their 
estate.  
 
This means that 
by 2017 all LTP 
members will be 
elected.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

21



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

 2)Hold new tenant ‘how was it for you’ sessions 
on a quarterly basis  

Sessions held on 
a quarterly and 
results reported 
that identify areas 
for improvement.  

Ongoing Resident 
involvement 
team 

Two sessions 
arranged for April 
didn’t go ahead 
due to lack of 
interest. Looking 
to arrange 
sessions in 
November 2016.  

 

22



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

Monitor and 
scrutinise our 
local offers 
 

3)To review the role of working groups and 
their tenant scrutiny role to ensure scrutiny 
reviews are robust 
 

 Setting clear terms of reference for 
working groups 

 Setting a clear programme of work 

 Provide officer support to support work 
programme 

 Promote vacant seats 
 

Carry out 2 
scrutiny reviews 
each year 

Ongoing Resident 
involvement 
team 

Two further 
reviews in 
progress: 
 

 Voids 

 Missed 
repair 
appoint-
ents. 

 

 4)To set up an independent complaints panel  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A complaints 
panel which is 
published and 
accessible to all 
tenants 

April 2014 Housing 
Services 
Team 

Complaints panel 
in place. Two 
complaints 
referred for a 
review to date.  

 

23



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

Adopt a more 
strategic 

understanding 
of our ability to 

meet the 
current and 

future social 
housing needs 
and emerging 

issues of 
residents of the 

city 

5)Introduce a new approach through ‘team 
around the place’ to enable more tenants to 
influence estate and environmental 
improvements: 
 

 Review estate inspections 

 Improve the way in which tenants can 
influence estate and environmental 
improvements 

 Carry out satisfaction surveys and 
produce regular reports for officer and 
tenant scrutiny  

 
 

Hold an annual 
programme of 
estate inspections  
which can be 
linked to 
improvements  

 Tenancy 
Services 
Team 
 
 

Estate 
inspections now 
taking place.  

 

Expand tenant 
and resident 
association 
coverage to 
include full city 
coverage 

6)Review and widely publish our recognition 
criteria for tenants and residents associations 

A new published 
recognition criteria 

May 2016 Resident 
involvement 
team 

The recognition 
criteria have been 
published and 
publicity has 
taken place. 
Further publicity 
needed in Home! 
magazine. 
 

 

24



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

 7) Look at increasing the ways for tenants to be 
involved and increase the number involved. 

Increased number 
of tenants 
involved.  

Oct 2016 Resident 
involvement 
team  

Groups set up at 
Gaunt Street, 
Jarvis House, 
Lower City centre 
area, Hermit 
Street and 
Walnut Place. 
Plans to set up 
further Groups on 
St Giles and 
Trent View. 

 

 8)Agree a programme of events to encourage 
the formation of tenants and residents 
association to include: 
 

 Targeted work in underrepresented 
areas 

 Targeted work on hard to reach groups 
identified through tenant profiling 

 

Have an annual 
programme for 
engaging with 
tenants which is 
increasing tenant 
involvement 

May  2016 Resident 
involvement 
team 

Successful 
Roadshow taken 
place. Housing 
Fun day to take 
place on 30 
August 16. Have 
attended other 
community 
events 
throughout the 
year. 

f 

25



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

Embrace and 
develop existing 
tenants and 
resident 
associations 
 

9)Provide support for associations to include: 
 

 Grants 

 Officer support 

 Training and networking 

 Inclusion in wider community groups 
such a neighbourhood boards 

 

Percentage of 
tenants 
represented by 
tenants and 
residents 
associations 

May 2016 Resident 
involvement 
team 

Support is being 
offered to existing 
resident 
associations. This 
includes 
facilitating 
meetings and 
advising on terms 
of references.  
 

 

Promote 
individual 
development to 
enable 
independence 
and challenge 
 

10)Have in place an annual training plan to 
help tenants develop which will include 
 

 meetings to discuss training needs 

 individually tailored plans 

 training opportunities to be widely 
published to all tenants 

 tenant networking, locally, regionally and 
nationally 

 
 
 
 
 
 

A publicised 
programme of 
training 
 
Take up of 
training by tenants 

October 
2016 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

Draft proposal 
written and 
planning to carry 
out market 
research.  

 26



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

Recognise that 
not all tenants 
will want to be 
Represented by 
tenant and 
resident 
associations 

11)Introduce tenant elected spokespersons to 
allow tenants in streets or place blocks to elect 
a spokesperson to include: 
 

 Develop an elected spokesperson 
scheme 

 Publicise scheme 

 Recruit elected spokesperson in areas 
not represented by tenants and 
residents associations 

 

An elected 
tenants voice in 
areas not 
represented by 
tenants and 
residents 
associations 

October 
2016 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

So far one tenant 
applied but his 
application was 
rejected by 
residents.  
 
.  

 

 12)Develop special housing forums to engage 
with hard to reach groups or to discuss issues 
that are relevant to specific groups of tenants, 
such as: 
 

 leaseholders 

 young people 

 ethnic minorities 

 tenants in multi-storey blocks 

 tenants in sheltered housing 
 

Housing forums in 
place for specific 
groups of tenants 

Young 
people 
October 
2016 
 
Ethnic 
minorities 
October 
2016 
 
 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

In progress- 
 
Leaseholders-
several 
leaseholder 
meetings held. 
 
Leaseholder now 
sits on the panel. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Multi-storey 

 

27



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

blocks-residents 
groups set up at 
Shuttleworth 
House and Jarvis 
House, with plans 
to set up a group 
at Trent View 
later in the year.  
 
Sheltered 
housing forums 
held in April and 
October.  

 13) Work in partnership to encourage greater 
involvement from tenants in improving 
neighbourhoods, such as:  
 

 Community groups 

 Neighbourhood boards 
 

Tenants being 
involved in 
community groups 
and boards 

August 
2014 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

Completed-LTP 
members are 
now attending 
neighbourhood 
boards.  
 

 

Demonstrate 
and evidence 
accountability to 
the 
representative 
groups 
 

14) Carry out an annual review to assess 
groups accountability 
 

 Develop a register of representative 
groups 

 Develop criteria for annual review 

 Carry out reviews 
 

All groups are 
assessed annually 

Ongoing Resident 
involvement 
team 

Register in place 
and reviews will 
be carried out 
every March.  

 

28



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

Equality, 
diversity and 
fairness 
 

15) Develop an equality and diversity strategy 
for housing services 
 
 

Strategy in place  
and actions being 
monitored 

 Housing 
Quality and 
Performance 
Team 

The action plan in 
the process of 
being reviewed. 
 

 

 16) Carry out equality impact assessments on 
new policies 
 

All new policies 
have been 
assessed 

 Housing 
Quality and 
Performance 
Team 

Officers should 
now be 
completing 
impact 
assessments on 
all new policies. 
 

 

Codes of 
conduct 

17) Review codes of conducts for tenant 
activities to ensure consistency 
 

Revised codes of 
conduct in place 

December 
2016 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

Draft produced 
awaiting 
consultation. 

 

Council’s 
commitment 
 

18) Introduce a loyalty card scheme to provide 
an incentive for tenants to get involved 
 

Loyalty card 
scheme in place 
with take up being 
monitored 

April 2015 Resident 
involvement 
team 

In place and 
operating.  

 

29



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

 19) To continue to involve tenants in the 
publication of our Home magazine which is 
published at least three times a year to include: 
 

 Developing the Home magazine editorial 
panel 

 Greater input from tenants and 
community groups 

 More information on community events 

 Greater interaction by tenants through 
competitions 

 

Publish minimum 
of  three editions a 
year 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resident 
involvement 
team 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Editions 
published in 
January, June 
and August.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 20) To publish an annual report to tenants to 
report on: 
 

 performance,  

 local offers, 

 tenant scrutiny 

 tenant satisfaction 

 ‘You said we did’ 

 Future planned activities 
 

Publish by 1 
October each year 

October 
2016 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

The 2015/16 
edition has been 
completed.   

 

30



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

 21) Review local offers and customer service 
standards.  

Revised local 
offers and 
customer services 
standards in place 

 Resident 
involvement 
team 

Consultation 
carried out with 
LTP. Consult 
residents as part 
of the new TIES 
strategy 
consultation.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22) To review our resident involvement 
Information leaflets in line with service changes 
to include: 
 

 A guide to resident involvement 

 A guide for tenants and residents 
associations 

 Review of tenants handbook 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 

Revised leaflets in 
place 

 Tenancy 
Services 
Team 

Revised leaflets 
in place. 

 

Functioning 
tenant 

involvement 
structures 

covering all 
levels 

 

23)To gain accreditation by the National 
Tenants Organisation for our tenant 
involvement and empowerment service 
 

Accreditation 
achieved 

October 
2014 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

Accreditation 
gained on 22 
October 2014.  

 

31



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

 24)To gain accreditation for Customer Service 
Excellence 
 

Accreditation 
achieved 

February 
2014 

Quality and 
Development 
Team 

Accreditation 
gained in 
February 2014. 
Reviews passed 
in 2015 and 
2016. 
 

 

Review and 
impact 
assessment 
support 
arrangements in 
particular 
supporting new 
groups 

 

25) Record how many tenants are actively 
involved,  identify areas that are under-
represented and use this information to inform 
an annual programme of activity 
 

Have an annual 
programme for 
engaging with 
tenants which is 
increasing tenant 
involvement 

January 
2016 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

Annual plan in 
place for 2016. 

 

Menu of 
involvement 

26) Publish and promote a new menu of 
involvement 
 

Published new 
menu 

October 
2015 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

New menu of 
involvement in 
place and being 
promoted. 
 

 

 27) Publish and promote a programme of 
estate / patch inspections 
 

Publish an annual 
programme of 
estate inspections 

 Tenancy 
Services 
Team 

Inspections are in 
progress.  

 

32



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

 28) Publish and promote housing surgeries 
where there is demand 
 

Published 
programme of 
housing surgeries 

Ongoing Resident 
Involvement 
Team 

Programme will 
be published in 
Home! and on the 
website as 
required. 

 

 29)Increase the number of responses to 
satisfaction survey by introducing incentives for 
tenants to complete them. 
 
 
 

Increase in the 
number of 
satisfaction 
surveys returned 

October 
2015 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

Incentive scheme 
ready but needs 
implementing.  
 
Forms 
redesigned to 
allow easier 
capture of data. 
 
Resident 
involvement team 
to carry out 
phone calls to 
increase return 
rate. 
 
   

 

33



Appendix A-three-year action plan  

 

Areas for 
improvement 
 

Action What we aim to 
achieve 

Deadline  Resource 
required 

Progress  R
A

G
 

New and 
innovative 
contacts (non-
traditional such 
as virtual and 
informal 
engagement) 
 

30) Set up a housing Facebook page to 
increase engagement from younger tenants.  

Facebook page 
that is increasing 
engagement  

October 
2016 

Resident 
involvement 
team 

Housing 
Facebook page in 
place and being 
promoted.  
 

 

Report on 
progress in 
delivering the 
actions set out 
in this action 
plan 
 

31) Reports to Housing Services Team and the 
Lincoln Tenants Panel  

Minimum of 2 
update reports a 
year 

Ongoing Resident 
Involvement 
Team 

In progress one 
report presented 
in June and 
Second report 
due in November 
2016. 

 

 

 

Green = Task/stage on target 
Light Blue = Task/stage completed 
Dark blue = Task/stage completed and repeating on action plan 
Amber = Task/stage held or delayed 
Red = Task/stage off target 
Grey=Task not yet started.  
 

34



  

 
HOUSING SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

14 NOVEMBER 2016 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17 
 

DIRECTORATE: 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & TOWN CLERK  
 

LEAD OFFICER: CLAIRE TURNER, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 To present Members with the work programme for 2016/17 (Appendix A). 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 

The work programme for 2016/17 is provided for information to ensure members 
are aware of the forthcoming business at future meetings of the Housing Scrutiny 
Sub Committee. The work programme is regularly updated in consultation with the 
chair of the committee and chair of Lincoln Tenants Panel. 
 
The work programme includes those areas for scrutiny linked to the strategic 
priorities of the Council and housing matters, this was to ensure that the work of this 
committee is relevant and proportionate.  

 
3. Recommendation 

 
3.1 
 
 

That Members agree the work programme and recommend any necessary 
amendments. 

Access to Information: 
Does the report contain exempt 
information, which would prejudice the 
public interest requirement if it was 
publicised? 
 

 
No 

Key Decision No 
 

Do the Exempt Information Categories 
Apply 
 

No 

Call In and Urgency: Is the decision one 
to which Rule 15 of the Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules apply? 
 

 
No 

Does the report contain Appendices? 
 

Yes 

If Yes, how many Appendices? 
 

1 
 

Lead Officer:  Claire Turner, Democratic Services Officer 
Telephone 873619 

 

35

Item No. 8



This page is intentionally blank.



Amended  22/09/16 CT 
 

 
 

APPENDIX A 
Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee Work Programme – Timetable for 2016/17Item Person(/ 

3 27 June 20160 Comments 

Item(s) 
 

Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ Comments 

Quarter 4 2015/16 – Performance Summary  
 

Karen Talbot This will be a summary report.  

Tenant Involvement and Empowerment 2014-17 Strategy Update Chris Morton  

LTP Annual Report Eric Jenkinson/ Chris Morton  

 
    

Democratic Services Regular Report 
 

8 August 2016 

Item(s) 
 

Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ Comments 

Quarter 1 (2016/17) – Performance Report Karen Talbot  

Annual Report to Tenants'  Chris Morton  

New Build Modernisation Programme  Clive Pridgeon/ Kev Bowring Requested at Jan meeting and 
carried forward from June’s meeting 

ASB Service Development  Karen Talbot Requested at June’s meeting 

 
3 October 2016 - Annual Performance 

 

Item(s) 
 

Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ Comments 

   

Annual Performance reports on the following areas: 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Bob Ledger/Frances Jelly Annual report 
Housing Investment Programme (HIP)  Kev Bowring Annual report 

37



Amended  22/09/16 CT 
 

 
 

14 November 2016 

Item(s) 
 

Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ Comments 

Quarter 2 (2016/17) – Performance and Finance Report  Karen Talbot Quarterly report 

LTP Annual Report – Half Yearly Report  Eric Jenkinson Annual report 

Tenant Involvement and Empowerment 2014-17 Strategy Update Chris Morton  

‘Home! magazine editions 2017-article planning Chris Morton Requested at June meeting 

16 January 2017 

Item(s) 
 

Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ Comments 

Post Implementation Review of Servitor Matt Hillman Requested at Jan 2016 meeting 

Housing Repairs and Maintenance Policy and Rechargeable Repairs Policy Karen Talbot Added at officer’s request. 

13 March 2017 

Item(s) 
 

Responsible Person(s) Strategic Priority/ Comments 

Quarter 3 (2016/17) – Performance Report Karen Talbot Quarterly report 

Housing Portfolio Holder   Annual report 
 
Items to be scheduled on the work programme 
 

 Secure Tenancies – Verbal update required on what the Government is intending to do with Secure Tenancies 

 Tenant Review Report 

 New Building Company 
 

38


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 3 October 2016
	4 Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 2 2016/17
	HSC Nov 16 Appendix A Performance Report

	5 Lincoln Tenants' Panel (LTP) Update Report
	6 Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Strategy 2014-17, Update Report
	HSC Nov 16 Tenant I+E Strategy append

	8 Work Programme 2016/17
	Work Programme 2016 - 17 - Appendix A


